
Official Board Packet 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

July Board Meeting 
To be held at  

Treaty Oak Bank 
101 Westlake Dr. 

Treaty Oak Conference Room 
Austin, TX 78746 

 
Wednesday, July 8, 2009 

1:30 p.m. 



 
 

BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

To be held at 
Treaty Oak Bank 

101 Westlake Drive 
Treaty Oak Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78746 
July 8, 2009 at 1:30 pm 

 
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL                                                                                                                   Robert “Bob” Jones 
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM                       Chair 
 
The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the following: 
     
PRESIDENT’S REPORT                    David Long 

  -Legislative Update 
 -Texas Foreclosure Prevention Task Force 
 -Texas Foundations Fund Award and Potential Applications 

-Program Area Reports 
 -Monthly Budget and Investment Reports 

 
ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING: 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on May 29, 2009. 
 
Tab 2 Discussion and Designation of a Vice Chair for the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation Board of 

Directors. 
 
Tab 3 Discussion and Possible Approval of Audit Committee Membership. 
 
Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Loan under the Multifamily Direct Lending Program to 

the Mary Lee Foundation for the Willows Apartments Project.  
 
Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Regarding the Submission of an Application 

to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for Funding under the Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program Federal Competitive Application Round.  

 
Tab 6 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Providing the President and the Executive 

Vice President with the Authority to Execute Compliance Agreements and Related Documents with Third 
Party Clients for the Provision of Compliance Review and Asset Oversight Services on Multifamily 
Portfolios with 60% or More of Their Rental Units Located Within Texas and Concerning Other Matters 
Incident and Related thereto. 

 
Tab 7 Presentation in Recognition of Thomas A. Leeper and his Dedication and Exemplary Service to the Texas 

State Affordable Housing Corporation. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CLOSED MEETING 
Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters – Texas Government Code § 551.071 
Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property – Texas Government Code § 551.072 
Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation – Texas 
Government Code § 551.073 
Personnel Matters – Texas Government Code § 551.074 
Implementation of security personnel or devices – Texas Government Code § 551.076 
Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code 
 
OPEN MEETING 
Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Meeting 
 
ADJOURN   
Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Laura Ross, ADA Responsible Employee, at 
512-477-3555, x 400 or Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a later 
stated time, if and to the extent allowed by law.  If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting and 
reconvenes at a later time, the later meeting will be held in the same location as this meeting.  Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation also reserves the right to proceed into a closed meeting during the meeting in accordance with the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. If permitted by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code, any item on this Agenda to be discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the Board (and any other authorized 
persons) in closed meeting. 



 
 

 



PRESIDENT’S REPORT 



Texas Foundations Fund Award and 
Potential Applications 



 
 

M  E  M  O  R  A  N  D  U  M 
 
To: Advisory Council, Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 
 
From: Paige McGilloway, Single Family Programs Manager 
 
Date: May 8, 2009 
 
Re: 2008 Texas Foundations Fund Grant Recommendations for Hurricane Relief – 

Community Development Corporation of Brownsville 
 
 
Staff recommends that the following organization be awarded $50,000 to fund 
the housing project described in its 2008 Texas Foundations Fund for Hurricane 
Relief proposal as follows: 
 
1. Community Development Corporation of Brownsville (CDCB) – The grant 

will be used for the rehabilitation and/or critical repair of owner-occupied 
homes affected by Hurricane Dolly in Cameron County.  Critical repair and/or 
rehabilitation is defined as construction work necessary to alleviate hurricane 
damage to a home that without repair would cause or is causing a health or 
safety problem for the individual or family. Furthermore, the grant is designed 
to assist those individuals at or below 50% of the area median family income 
who were affected by the storm.   

 
It is anticipated that approximately 10 single family homes will be repaired, 
$5,000 allocated per home, utilizing this grant.   
 
Since 1974, CDCB has been the major sub-recipient of over $57M in federal, 
state, local and private funds. CDCB has considerable experience in all 
aspects of affordable housing development. CDCB has evolved into the 
largest producer of single family housing for homeownership in Texas.  CDCB 
operates six housing and education programs to meet the needs of Cameron 
County residents.  

 
TSAHC staff has reviewed the application for completion and threshold 
compliance. Staff is recommending that CDCB be awarded the full $50,000.   



Program Area Reports 



Development Finance Programs Report 

July 10, 2009 
 

 
 

Summary of Activities 
 
Affordable Communities of Texas Program 
Development Finance Programs staff have been busy in all areas the past several months. Work on 
the Corporation�s agreement with the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs 
(�TDHCA�) regarding a contract for $5 million related to the Neighborhood Stabilization Program 
(�NSP-1�) continues to move slowly. TDHCA has been focused on processing applications and 
selecting awardees under its competitive application cycle for NSP-1.  TDCHA is expected to 
approve our program proposal July 16, 2009, at its next board meeting.  
 
Related to the NSP-1 program the Corporation has continued to develop its program guides, 
application and other materials related to the Affordable Communities of Texas program. Working 
with Neighborworks America and the National Community Stabilization Trust (�NCST�) the 
Corporation has successfully launched a pilot program connecting local partners with foreclosure 
property listings through NCST�s First Look program. The program provides local partners access 
to foreclosed property lists from more than 10 national financial institutions prior to properties 
being listed with REO service providers. This approach is intended to give local nonprofits better 
access and pricing to foreclosures in their target markets.  
 
Additionally, the Corporation has expanded its list of ACT Local Partners from two to ten in the 
past few weeks as we work to bring the NCST program to full scale over the summer months.  Staff 
estimates that we will be able to commit all $5 million of the NSP-1 funding from TDHCA quickly 
given the range and ability of our local partners to absorb available properties.  
 
Given the high demand from local partners in several markets, staff has prepared an application to 
the second round of NSP funding (�NSP-2�) available through a competitive application to the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (�HUD�). This application will be reviewed by 
the Board as an agenda item at today�s meeting.  
 
Lending Programs 
Finally, the Corporation continues to work on a few applications to our lending programs. 
Specifically, we have completed the review of an application by the Mary Lee Foundation for The 
Willows Apartment complex in Austin, Texas. This application is being recommended for approval 
at today�s meeting.  A summary of the Corporation�s loan program pipeline report and quarterly loan 
status report are included as an attachment to this summary of activities.  
 
 











Monthly Budget and Investment 
Reports 



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
As of May 31, 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,770,853                 
Building Maintenance Reserve 35,336                      
Computer Equipment and Furniture Reserve 4,644                        

Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,759,768                 
Short-term Investments, at Fair Market Value 2,464,627                 
Accrued Interest 547,258                    

Investments, at Fair Market Value 1,735,000                 
Accounts Receivable & Accrued Revenue, Net of uncollectible amts. of $758,041 316,139                    
Accrued Interest Receivable 118,436                    
Loans Receivable,  Current Portion 62,219                      
Notes Receivable, Current Portion 54,402                      
Prepaid Expenses 7,677                        

Total Current Assets: 13,876,359               
Noncurrent Assets:

Loans Receivable, Net of uncollectible amounts of $91,726 1,216,781                 
Notes Receivable 3,092,676                 
Mortgage Servicing Rights, Net of Accumulated Amortization of $1,865,985 862,076                    
Fixed Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation of $230,850 1,143,161                 
Custodial Cash and Cash Equivalents 207,123                    
Bond Issuance Costs, Net of Amortization of $928,261 4,731,577                 
Restricted Investments Held by Bond Trustee, at Fair Market Value 271,506,190             

Total Noncurrent Assets: 282,759,584             
TOTAL ASSETS: 296,635,943             

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 70,695                      
Notes Payable, Current Portion 16,636                      
Other Current Liabilities 25,532                      
Payable from Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee:

Bonds Payable, Current Portion 11,312,980               
Accrued Interest on Bonds 1,595,523                 
Total Current Liabilities: 13,021,366               

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Multifamily Custodial and Reserve Funds 207,123                    
Notes Payable 2,841,325                 
Revenue Bonds Payable from Restricted Assets Held by Bond Trustee 264,591,577             
Deferred Revenue 634,671                    

Total Noncurrent Liabilities: 268,274,696             
Total Liabilities: 281,296,062             

Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets 1,143,161                 
Building Maintenance Reserve 35,336                      
Computer Equipment and Furniture Reserve 4,644                        
Unrestricted Net Assets 14,156,740               

Total Net Assets: 15,339,881               
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS $ 296,635,943             



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Nine Month Period Ending May 31, 2009

Operating Revenues
     Interest and Investment Income $ 12,075,655               
     Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments 10,898,768               
     Single Family Program Issuer and Servicing Fees 119,326                    
     Asset Oversight and Compliance Fees, Net of Bad Debt Expense of $18,874 512,855                    
     Loan Servicing Fees, Net of subservicer fees of $87,178 210,086                    
     Multifamily Bond Fees 92,125                      
     Other Operating Revenue 347,579                    
          Total Operating Revenues 24,256,394               

Operating Expenses
     Interest Expense on Bonds and Notes Payable 8,911,310                 
     Down Payment Assistance Program 233,088                    
     Salaries, Wages and Payroll Related Costs 953,828                    
     Professional Fees and Services 227,523                    
     Amortization 294,851                    
     Office and Equipment Rental and Maintenance 80,111                      
     Travel and Meals 45,208                      
     Depreciation 14,271                      
     Program and Loan Administration 395,771                    
     Other Operating Expenses 101,736                    
          Total Operating Expenses 11,257,697               

Net Gain 12,998,697               

Total Net Assets, Beginning 2,341,184                 

Total Net Assets, Ending $ 15,339,881               



























































BOARD MEETING 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

Held at  
Treaty Oak Bank 

101 Westlake Drive 
Treaty Oak Conference Room 

Austin, Texas 78746 
May 29, 2009 at 1:00 pm 

 
Summary of Minutes 

 
Call to Order, Roll Call  
Certification of Quorum 
 
The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the 
“Corporation”) was called to order by Bob Jones, Chair, at 1:34 p.m., on May 29, 2009 at 
Treaty Oak Bank, 101 Westlake Drive, Treaty Oak Conference Room, Austin, TX 78701.  
Roll Call certified that a quorum was present. 
 
Members Present 
 
Bob Jones, Chair 
Cynthia Leon, Member 
R. Carter Sanders, Member 
Jo Van Hovel, Member  
 
Members Absent 
 
William H. Dietz, Member 
 
Staff Present 
 
David Long, President 
Katherine Closmann, Executive Vice President 
Nick Lawrence, Controller 
Paige McGilloway, Single Family Programs Manager 
David Danenfelzer, Development Finance Programs Manager 
Luceli Lopez, Asset Oversight and Compliance Specialist 
Sarah Schildmier, Asset Oversight and Compliance Specialist 
Janie Taylor, Manager of Marketing and Development 
Katie Howard, Development Coordinator 
Cynthia Gonzales, Office Manager and Assistant Corporate Secretary 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary 
 
Special Guests 
 
Rob Dubbelde, Greenberg Traurig LLP 
Elena Peinado, Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (TDHCA) 
 
Public Comment 
 
There was no public comment. 



  

 2 

 
Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board 

Meeting held on April 17, 2009. 
 
Mr. Sanders made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board Meeting held on April 17, 2009.  
Mr. Jones seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Tab 2 Discussion and Designation of a Vice Chair for the Texas State Affordable 

Housing Corporation Board of Directors. 
 
Mr. Jones nominated Mr. Sanders to be Vice Chair for the Texas State Affordable Housing 
Corporation Board of Directors.  Ms. Leon seconded the motion.  A vote was taken which 
resulted in three ayes and one nay. Motion passed. 
 
Tab 3 Discussion and Possible Approval of Audit Committee Membership. 
 
Mr. Long briefly explained that the Audit Committee membership was made up of the Vice 
Chair of the Board and one other board member, along with himself, Ms. Smith and Mr. 
Lawrence.  
 
Mr. Sanders nominated Ms. Leon to serve on the Audit Committee and Ms. Leon declined. Mr. 
Sanders stood by his motion and Mr. Jones seconded the motion.   
 
Ms. Leon nominated Mr. Dietz for the Audit Committee.  This motion lacked a second so the 
motion died. 
 
A vote was taken on Mr. Sanders’ motion that Ms. Leon serve on the Audit Committee. There 
were only two ayes so the motion did not pass. 
 
Before moving on to Tab 4, Ms. Van Hovel stated her availability to participate on the 
Committee.  Mr. Jones made a motion to appoint Ms. Van Hovel as a member of the Audit 
Committee.  Mr. Sanders seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution 

Approving the Execution of Certain Freddie Mac Seller/Servicer 
Documents.  

 
Mr. Long explained that the document before the Board was a requirement of Freddie Mac for 
all entities that maintained Seller/Servicer status. Mr. Long noted the resolution authorized him 
and Ms. Closmann to sign off on mortgage backed security transactions. Mr. Long informed the 
Board that they had already approved a resolution that gave him, Ms. Closmann and Ms. Smith 
signature authority, but the resolution before the Board today was specific to Freddie Mac.  Mr. 
Long referred the Board to Exhibit A of the resolution that listed those with signature authority.  
 
Mr. Sanders asked if Freddie Mac was asking the Corporation to do things differently then how 
they had been done in the past and Mr. Long responded that the resolution would not change 
how things had always been done.  Mr. Long pointed out that Freddie Mac was asking for a 
formal resolution approved by the board that specified who had signature authority on their 
transactions. Mr. Dubbelde noted that the resolution was something of a formality, because 
signature authority had already been authorized by the Board. Mr. Dubbelde explained that 



  

 3 

Freddie Mac needed a resolution that specified them by name and the Corporation as a 
seller/servicer. Discussion followed. 
 
Ms. Van Hovel made a motion to approve the resolution approving the execution of certain 
documents required by Freddie Mac related to the Corporation’s status as a Seller/Servicer.  Ms. 
Leon seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
President’s Report 
 
Mr. Long began by referring to the legislative information that was sent to the Board by Ms. 
Taylor and asked them to please let him know if they had questions. Mr. Sanders complemented 
Ms. Taylor on the great job she was doing. 
 
Mr. Long then turned to the Foreclosure Prevention Task Force. Mr. Long reported that all the 
compliance visits for NFMC counseling organizations had been completed.  Mr. Long also 
reported that an all member Task Force meeting had been held in Dallas the previous month. Mr. 
Long thanked Ms. Howard for all her hard work with the Task Force reporting activities to 
NFMC, as well as continuing to seek awards and funding for Task Force and Corporation 
initiatives. Mr. Sanders thanked Ms. Howard for her work. 
 
Mr. Long then turned to the Foundations Fund and noted that the Corporation recently made an 
award to Self-Help Housing of East Texas for $50,000. Mr. Long recalled that the awards made 
during this funding cycle of the Texas Foundations Fund would be used for rehab and 
reconstruction of homes damaged by Hurricane Ike and Dolly. Mr. Long reported that of the 
$250,000 in funding available under this funding cycle, $200,000 in awards had been made. Mr. 
Sanders inquired about what happened if a recipient of the funding wasn’t about to utilize the 
funding.  Mr. Long explained that the funds would then be returned to the Corporation. Mr. Long 
stated that thru the review process a strong effort was made to ensure that awards were made to 
entities with proven track records and the capacity to complete the proposed projects. Mr. 
Dubbelde added that a Grant Agreement between the Corporation and the recipient stated the 
recipient would return the funds if not used for the grant’s purpose. 
 
Mr. Long referred the Board to the program area reports. Mr. Long addressed the MCC program, 
noting that it was almost out of funds.  Mr. Long reported that staff was working with the 
Corporation’s professionals and the Bond Review Board to issue more funding for the program. 
Mr. Long turned to the Asset Oversight and Compliance reports.  Ms. Schildmier informed the 
Board that at the time the report was compiled Summer Oaks, Willowick and Aguila Oaks were 
out of compliance with their set aside requirements. Ms. Schildmier stated that Aguila Oaks was 
now back in compliance.  She also informed the Board that Summer Oaks and Willowick had 
been sent the proper documentation notifying them that they were in default. Ms. Schildmier 
then turned to the Resident Services Report and noted that all properties were meeting the 
required number of services per quarter.  Mr. Sanders inquired about who funded the services 
and Ms. Schildmier reported that the properties paid for the services or they were sponsored by 
other organizations. Discussion followed on the services provided and how they were 
documented. 
 
Mr. Long then turned to the monthly investment and budget report.  Mr. Long informed the 
Board that there had been no major changes for the period ending March 31, 2009.  Discussion 
followed regarding the Audit Committee – when they met and what they reviewed. Mr. 
Lawrence briefly turned to the income statement and noted that there was a net gain of $12 



  

 4 

million due to the net increase in fair value of investments. Mr. Sanders requested a flow chart 
that showed changes in revenues and expenses over the years that the Corporation had been in 
existence. Discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Jones referred back to legislative session and inquired about the letter from the FB Heron 
Foundation.  Mr. Long explained that the letter was sent to the Sunset Commission and 
supported a longer period between sunset reviews because it would make the Corporation more 
attractive to invest in and give grants to. Mr. Long also informed the board of a letter from 
Neighborworks that highlighted the Corporation’s capacity as a non-profit entity. Mr. Long 
briefly discussed the ACT program and the Corporation’s ability to purchase foreclosed 
properties that could then be sold as affordable housing. Discussion followed about the letters 
and also about current Sunset legislation. 
 
Open Meeting 
 
After discussion amongst the members, it was determined that the next board meeting would 
take place on July 10, 2009 at 1:30pm. 
 
Adjournment 
 
Mr. Sanders made a motion to adjourn the Board Meeting. Motion passed unanimously.  The 
meeting officially adjourned at 2:17 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by________________________________________________ 
Laura Ross, Corporate Secretary 



Tab 2 
 

Discussion and Designation of a Vice Chair for the 
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation 

Board of Directors. 
 

Discussion 
 



Tab 3 
 

Discussion and Possible Approval of Audit 
Committee Membership. 

 
Discussion 



Development Finance Programs Report 

July 8, 2009 

 
Agenda Item:  
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a loan under the Multifamily Direct Lending 
Program to The Willows Apartments Project.  
Summary: 
The Willows Apartment project is a 64 unit new construction housing development being 
proposed by the Mary Lee Foundation in Austin, Texas. The development will be built on the 
site of an existing 10 unit apartment complex, which is currently owned and operated by the 
Mary Lee Foundation and located within the boundaries of Lamar Square housing campus in 
south Austin. The total construction cost is estimated at approximately $4.4 million and will have 
financial support from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas, the City of Austin and private 
donors. The Corporation is proposing to lend $1.2 million for construction and long-term 
financing to complete the financing package.  
Program:  
This loan will be processed under the Corporation’s Multifamily Direct Lending program. The 
Corporation will utilize funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank Secure Connect program and 
its own funds in order to ensure a reasonable rate of return on its investment.  
Anticipated Closing Date: 
December 1, 2009 
Public Benefit: 
The Corporation’s funds will be used to help finance the construction of 64 affordable housing 
units for households from 30% to 80% of the area median income (“AMI”). The Mary Lee 
Foundation has provided housing to very-low and extremely low-income households for more 
than 46 years in Austin. The Willows will allow Mary Lee to significantly increase the number 
and quality of affordable housing for families and individual at-risk of homelessness in the 
community.
Public Comment: 
The Mary Lee Foundation has a long track record of building community support for their 
developments. Mary Lee has submitted support letters from public official and surrounding 
neighborhood organizations.
Financial Summary: 
The Mary Lee Foundation has requested a loan from the Corporation in the amount of $1.2 
million. Loan funds will be used for both construction and long-term financing for the 
development.  The Willows has already received commitments from the Austin Housing Finance 
Corporation for $2.25 million and a grant from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas’s 
Affordable Housing Program for $500,000. The Corporation’s loan will be in a first lien 
position.



Development Finance Programs Report 

July 8, 2009 

The total development cost of $4.4 million dollars is considered reasonable given the size and 
nature of the development. The development will consist of one four story building with 
additional space for community activities, supportive services and leasing offices.  Although the 
existing site does have ten units of affordable housing, all current tenants will be relocated to 
new units in adjacent housing developments.  

Cash flow projections for the development are very strong. Mary Lee enjoys 100% tax 
exemption status from the City of Austin and local taxing authorities, and maintains a very 
efficient system for funding raising to support ongoing activities and tenant supportive services. 
Operating costs for the development are well below regional averages, however Mary Lee has 
supported their estimates with sufficient documentation from their other housing developments 
to support their operating assumptions. Staff believes that the fact that Mary Lee controls all of 
the adjacent housing developments creates very significant efficiencies in their maintenance and 
operations staffing.

The additional financing for The Willows from the Austin Housing Financing Corporation will 
be in the form of a 40 years deferred forgivable loan in second lien position. The Federal Home 
Loan Bank of Dallas has approved a $500,000 grant, and the Mary Lee Foundation is raising an 
additional $259,000 in grant funds to complete the long-term financing for the project. The 
Corporation’s loan represents only 27.5% of the total financing.
The Corporation’s loan commitment will be contingent on Mary Lee’s ability to raise an 
additional $259,000 in grant equity for the project prior to closing.  The Mary Lee Foundation 
has demonstrated a strong history of fund raising for capital improvements over the past 46 
years. Additional conditions to the loan commitment include: 

The loan term shall be 15 years with a 30 year amortization period;

The interest rate shall be set to .25% above the 15 year rate for Federal Home Loan 
Bank’s Secure Connect Interest notes;

A 1% closing fee will be due at closing; and 
Closing by all other funders must at or before the closing of the Corporation’s loan.

Market Conditions: 
The Austin metropolitan market area has a population over 1.4 million person, according to 
recent census estimates. Although The Willows will target very-low and extremely low-income 
households, market surveys and news paper reports note that housing availability for households 
at or below 50% AMI for Austin is very poor. The Mary Lee Foundation also maintains waiting 
lists in excess of the 64 units that will become available once development is completed.  
Staff also contacted similar projects in the Austin area that provide housing to persons and 
families at risk of homelessness. All programs contacted noted significant waiting lists of 
persons that could not be served by the current inventory of Single Room Occupancy and 
Section 8 housing units in Austin.



Development Finance Programs Report 

July 8, 2009 

The location of the Willows is in an area with a very high median income, making the 
development an excellent opportunity to locate affordable housing in an underserved market 
area. Additionally, Staff’s assessment of completed value for the project is significantly higher 
than the Corporation’s investment and provides more than adequate collateral.
Borrower Summary: 
For forty-six years, the Mary Lee Foundation has managed multifamily housing and provided 
supportive services to low-income households in Austin, Texas. Mary Lee services more than 
350 persons annually, manages more than 173 units of housing and has built more than 88 units 
of affordable housing since 2003. Mary Lee has extensive experience in managing construction 
projects involving federal oversight and has a clear internal auditing process that can ensure 
compliance with the Corporation’s development standards.  
Affordability: 
The Willows Apartments is targeted to households and individuals at risk of homelessness. Half 
of all units will be affordable to households at 30% of less then the AMI. An additional 44% of 
units will be affordable to very-low income households at 50% AMI, with the remaining units 
affordable to households at 80% AMI. The Corporation will require a minimum affordability 
term of 30 years for its interest in the project.  
Resident Services: 
Residents at The Willows will have access to all of the supportive services provided to residents 
on the Mary Lee campus. Clients will have access to a variety of standard tenant supportive 
services including computer education, job training and educational classes. More direct case 
management services are available to tenants with disabilities or medical conditions for an 
additional fee, or is provided under Medicare/Medicaid contracts. All of Mary Lee’s supportive 
services centers are located in the Lamar Square campus.  
Fees: 
The Corporation will collect a commitment fee of $1,000 upon execution of the loan 
commitment and an additional closing fee of $12,000 upon closing
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve a loan under the Multifamily Direct Lending Program 
to the Mary Lee Foundation for the Willows Apartments, in an amount not to exceed $1.2 
million. 



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Underwriting Analysis

Financing Summary

Applicant
Project Name

Number of Units 64
Number of Buildings 1

Location
Address

City Austin State TX Zip 78704
Census Tract 13.03 County Travis

Contact Person
Name
Phone 512-633-8359 Fax

Email

Financing Participants

Name of Source Amount Lien Position Hard or Soft % of Total
2,250,000$          2 soft 50.69%
1,200,000$          1 Hard   27.03%

500,000$               11.26%
229,650$               5.17%

-$                     0.00%
0.00%

259,150$             5.84%
Deferred Developer Fee -$                       0.00%
Developer Equity -$                     0.00%
Totals 4,438,800$ 100%

Gap

Federal Home Loan Bank Dallas

Becca Bruce Dobberfuhl

vacridevelopment@gmail.com

Austin Housing Finance Corp

Mary Lee Foundation/Fundraising

TSAHC Direct Loan

Instructions: fill in each blank space with the correct information. Complete each page of the spreadsheet and review
for corrections. Then print a copy of the complete workbook and save an electronic copy of this workbook onto a
readable compact disk. 

Mary Lee Community
The Willows 

1330 & 1332 Lamar Square Drive

Financing Summary 1 of 10

mailto:vacridevelopment@gmail.com






Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Underwriting Analysis

Applicant
Project Name

Number of Units 64

 Total Cost  Cost Per Unit % of Total Costs
Acquisition

Site acquisition cost -$                               -$                               0%
Existing building acquisition cost 183,600$                       2,869$                           4%
Closing costs & acq. legal fees 6,000$                           94$                                0%
Other 2  (specify) -$                               0%
Subtotal 189,600$                       2,963$                           4%

Off - Sites
Off-site Utilities 30,000$                         469$                              1%
Off-site Streets and Roads -$                               0%
Other 2  (specify) -$                               0%
Subtotal 30,000$                         469$                              1%

Site Work
Demolition 152,250$                       2,379$                           3%
Grading 134,085$                       2,095$                           3%
Utilities 155,925$                       2,436$                           4%
Streets/Sidewalks -$                               0%
Landscaping 40,000$                         625$                              1%
Fencing -$                               0%
Other (specify) 110,000$                       1,719$                           2%
Other (specify) 50,180$                         784$                              1%
Subtotal 642,440$                       10,038$                         14%

Construction Costs
Hard Costs 2,387,500$                    37,305$                         54%
General Requirements (6% cap) 161,430$                       2,522$                           4%
Contractor Overhead 57,580$                         900$                              1%
Contractor Profit 160,800$                       2,513$                           4%
Contingency 200,000$                       3,125$                           5%
Other (Hard Costs Not Itemized) -$                               0%
Other (specify) 135,000$                       2,109$                           3%
Subtotal 3,102,310$                    48,474$                         70%

Development Cost Estimates

Mary Lee Community
The Willows 

Development Cost Estimates 4 of 10



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Underwriting Analysis

Applicant
Project Name

Number of Units 64

Total Cost Cost Per Unit % of Total Costs
Indirect and Financing Costs

Architecture / Engineering 139,500$                       2,180$                           3%
Professional Fees 20,000$                         313$                              0%
Building permits & related costs 11,500$                         180$                              0%
Appraisal 7,500$                           117$                              0%
Market analysis -$                               0%
Environmental assessment 8,000$                           125$                              0%
Survey 5,000$                           78$                                0%
Marketing -$                               0%
Course of construction insurance 128,000$                       2,000$                           3%
Hazard & liability insurance -$                               0%
Real property taxes -$                               0%
Personal property taxes -$                               0%
Tenant relocation expenses 10,000$                         156$                              0%
Other 2  (Compliance and Contingency) -$                               0%
Developer Fee (15% cap) 100,000$                       1,563$                           2%
General & administrative -$                               0%
Cost of financing 35,800$                         559$                              1%
Subtotal 465,300$                       7,270$                           10%

Reserves
Rent-up -$                               0%
Operating 9,150$                           143$                              0%
Replacement -$                               0%
Escrows -$                               0%
Subtotal 9,150$                           143$                              0%

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COSTS 4,438,800$                    69,356$                         100%

Less Commercial Construction -$                               

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL COSTS 4,438,800$                    69,356$                         

Mary Lee Community
The Willows 

Development Cost Estimates

Development Cost Estimates 5 of 10



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Underwriting Analysis

Applicant
Project Name

Number of Units 64

Sources Amount Amount Per Unit Percentage of Total
Austin Housing Finance Corp 2,250,000$                    35,156$                         51%
TSAHC Direct Loan 1,200,000$                    18,750$                         27%
Federal Home Loan Bank Dallas 500,000$                       7,813$                           11%
Mary Lee Foundation/Fundraising 229,650$                       3,588$                           5%
Deferred Developer Fee -$                               -$                               0%

259,150$                       4,049$                           
Total Sources 4,438,800$                    69,356$                         94%

Uses
Acquisition 189,600$                       2,963$                           4%
Off-Site Construction 30,000$                         469$                              1%
On-site and Contruction Costs 3,744,750$                    58,512$                         84%
Indirect Costs 329,500$                       5,148$                           7%
Financing Costs 35,800$                         559$                              1%
Reserve Accounts 9,150$                           143$                              0%

0%
Developer Fees 100,000$                       1,563$                           2%

Total Uses 4,438,800$                    69,356$                         100%

Summary of Sources and Uses

Mary Lee Community
The Willows 

Sources and Uses Summary 6 of 10



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Underwriting Analysis

Development Cost Analysis

Applicant
Project Name

Number of Units 64

Expense Description Total Cost Per Unit Per NSF
Acquisition Cost 189,600$          2,963 7.41                  
Off-Sites 30,000$            469 1.17                  
Sitework 642,440$          10,038 25.10                
Direct Construction 2,387,500$       37,305 93.26                
  Contingency & Misc. 335,000$          5,234 13.09                
  General Requirements 161,430$          2,522 6.31                  
  Contractor's Profit & O/H 218,380$          3,412 8.53                  
Indirect Construction Costs 329,500$          5,148 12.87                
Developer's Profit 100,000$          1,563 3.91                  
Financing (Interim) 35,800$            559 1.40                  
Reserves 9,150$              143 0.36                  

TOTALS 4,438,800$       69,356$             173$                  

Average New Construction* 103,147$                 121$                        
Average Acquisition Rehab* 72,345$                   85$                           

Percent Difference from New Construction -32.8% 42.9%
Percent Difference from Rehab -4.1% 103.7%

The Willows 
Mary Lee Community

Development Cost Analysis 7 of 10



Financial Ratio Analysis

Analysis for:

Data Points
Cash and Equivalents  $           66,749 
Accounts Receivable  $             5,353 
Fixed Assets  $      2,709,348 
Total Assets  $      2,814,624 
Accounts Payable  $         164,968 
Long-term Debt  $         925,762 
Total Liabilities  $      1,125,833 
Total Liabiliaties and net  $      2,814,624 

Rents and Income  $         295,206 
Contribution Totals  $           57,717 
Total Revenue  $         352,923 

Program Expenses 299,200$         
Management 31,902$           
Other
Total Expenses  $         331,102 

Change in Net Assets  $           35,320 

Accounts Payable Aging Indicator 5.98
(accounts payable x 12) / total expenses

Contirbutions and Grants Ratio 0.16
(contributions + grants) / total revenue

This sheet contains several ratio calculations which create the basis for an analysis of an Applicant's financial
status. Financial ratios are not the only means of determining the financial strength of a nonprofit entity and should
be considered along with productivity, housing need and the past experience of the entity being reviewed. 

The underwriter believes that the following analysis demonstrates that the applicant's 
financial status is sufficienlty stable. The applicant's ratios are all within reasonable limits 
given the age of the organization, its successful management of long-term housing, and 
the nature of thier business model.

The accounts payable aging indicator may shed light upon the credit-worthiness of the
organization. The lower the indicator, the faster the organization pays its bills.

The contributions and grants ratio indicates the extent of the organization's dependence on
voluntary support by calculating the percentage of total revenue made up by contributions
and grants.

The Willows 



Debt Ratio 0.40
(total Liabilities / total assets)

Fundraising Ratio 16%
(contributions / total expenses)

Program Ratio 90%
(program service expenses / total expenses)

Savings Ratio 7%
(total revenue - total expenses) / total expenses

The debt ratio indicates an organization's financial solvency by measuring the relationship
of its total liabilities and debt to its total assets. Higher ratios could indicate financial
problems in the future. An organization's debt ratio may be distorted if it carries a high
proportion of "grants payable" or "grants receivable" on its balance sheet. Grants
payable�the unpaid portion of grants and awards that the organization has committed to
pay other organizations or individuals�are carried as liabilities on the balance sheet. Grants
receivable�funds pledged to the organization by government agencies, foundations, and
other organizations�are carried as assets on the balance sheet.

The fundraising ratio measures the relationship between fundraising expenses and the
organization's total expenses. Fundraising costs are noted on Form 990 in Part I, line 15. They
are not noted on Form 990-EZ. The fundraising ratio is perhaps the least useful of the ratios for 
several reasons. First, there is ample evidence that nonprofits do not report fundraising
expenses reliably�about 60 percent of the public charities that file a Form 990 report no
fundraising expenses at all. Second, unique circumstances facing a nonprofit might make
its fundraising ratio higher or lower than that of another organization. For example,
nonprofits that can rely largely on foundation funding will have much lower fundraising costs
than organizations that must raise money through many smaller contributions.

The program ratio measures the relationship between program expenses (funds a nonprofit
devotes to its direct mission-related work) and the organization's total expenses. Younger
organizations might have lower program ratios than more mature organizations as they set
about building the infrastructure to support their mission. Also, some types of services simply
require more overhead than others. Over time, organizations should strive to achieve ever-
higher program ratios, devoting as many of their resources to "program activity" as possible.

The savings ratio reveals the rate of the nonprofit's savings by measuring the relationship
between total annual savings and total expenses. Although the savings ratio is an important
component of longevity, high ratios may indicate excessive savings. The savings ratio should
be considered in combination with the liquid funds indicator. If the nonprofit has low liquid
funds, a higher savings ratio may be desirable.



Development Finance Programs Report 

Agenda Items July 8, 2009 
 

 

 
 

 
Agenda Item:  
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a resolution regarding the submission of an 
application to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for funding under the 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program federal competitive application round.  
 
Summary:  
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) has released a notice of 
funding availability regarding the allocation of approximately $2 billion under the Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program (“NSP2”). This release of funds was authorized by the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 as a competitive grant to address home foreclosure and 
abandonment and for the provision of capacity building and support for NSP grantees. Rating 
factors will include grantee capacity to execute projects, leveraging potential, and concentration 
of investment to achieve neighborhood stabilization. Grantees must expend at least 50 percent of 
each grant within 2 years and 100 percent within 3 years of grant award. 

Staff is proposing to submit an application in order to expand financial resources for the 
Corporation’s Affordable Communities of Texas (“ACT”) program. Fourteen locally based 
nonprofit entities submitted applications to the Corporation’s ACT program and will be 
considered local partners for the sake of the application to the NSP2 competitive funding round. 
Each of the local partners have been reviewed and qualified under the Corporation’s ACT 
program policies.   

Staff is planning to request approximately $30 million to acquire foreclosed properties in 
communities serviced by the local partners. Additionally, funding will be available to demolish 
blighted and abandoned properties, and for program administration. The Corporation has made 
public notification of a public hearing to be held on July 8th, 2009 prior to the Board meeting 
scheduled for the same day.  
A copy of the draft application is included after this summary.  
Staff Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the resolution authorizing the submission of an application to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development for funding under the Neighborhood 
Stabilization Program federal competitive application round.  

 



3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-__ 
 

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

“Resolution Providing the President and the Executive Vice 
President  with the Authority to Execute Compliance Agreements 
and Related Documents with Third Party Clients for the Provision 
of Compliance Review and Asset Oversight Services on 
Multifamily Portfolios with 60% or More of Their Rental Units 
Located Within Texas and Concerning Other Matters Incident and 
Related thereto” 

WHEREAS, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation”) 
has been duly created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of 
the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, Article 1396-1.01 et seq. Vernon’s Annotated 
Texas Civil Statutes, as amended, and under the authority of Subchapter Y of Chapter 
2306, Texas Government Code, as amended (the “Act”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 09-01 (the “Prior Resolution”), the 
Corporation established a Contract Compliance Services Program whereby the 
Corporation will provide compliance review and/or asset oversight services to third party 
clients as described in the Prior Resolution (the “Compliance Program”); 

WHEREAS, in compliance with the Act, the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation (the “Board”) now desires for the President and the Executive Vice President 
of the Corporation to have authority to negotiate and execute applicable documents 
related to the Compliance Program for portfolio transactions (transactions including three 
or more multifamily housing rental projects, each a “Portfolio Transaction”) so long as 
sixty percent (60%) of the rental units in any Portfolio Transaction are located within the 
State of Texas (the “60% Threshold”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Texas 
State Affordable Housing Corporation: 

Section 1. Approval of the 60% Threshold.  That the Board hereby approves 
the 60% Threshold for Portfolio Transactions under the Compliance Program.   

Section 2. Approval of Certain Actions Related to the Compliance Program.  
That the Board hereby authorizes the President of the Corporation and the  Executive 
Vice President of the Corporation to pursue the activities enumerated in the Prior 
Resolution related to the Compliance Program so long as the 60% Threshold is 
maintained with respect to Portfolio Transactions. 

Section 3. Ratification of Certain Prior Actions.  That all prior actions taken 
by or on behalf of the Corporation in connection with the Compliance Program are 
hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved. 



4 
 

Section 4.  Purposes of Resolution.  That the Board has expressly determined 
and hereby confirms that the establishment of the Compliance Program and the 60% 
Threshold accomplish a valid public purpose of the Corporation. 

Section 5. Conflicting Prior Actions.  That all orders, resolutions, or any 
actions or parts thereof of the Board in conflict herewith are hereby expressly repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict. 

Section 6. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect from and upon its adoption. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 8th day of July, 2009. 

 
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 



Tab 7 
 

Presentation in Recognition of Thomas A. Leeper 
and his Dedication and Exemplary Service to the 

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation. 
 

Presentation 
 


	Official Board Packet Cover
	Agenda
	President's Report
	Tab 1
	Tab 2
	Tab 3
	Tab 4
	Tab 5
	Tab 6
	Tab 7

